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Note:  The next meeting is scheduled for August 9, 2021. 
 

* The hearing will be held via communications media technology as County Center, 601 
E. Kennedy Blvd., remains closed to the public in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Arrangements have been made for members of the public who want to participate to have 
access to the public hearing. Anyone who wishes to speak during the public hearing can 
do so by contacting the Affordable Housing Advisory Board 
at AffordableHousingServices@hillsboroughcounty.org. You will be required to provide 
your name and telephone number in your email request to speak. This information is 
being requested to facilitate the audio-conferencing process. The Chair will call on 
speakers by name in the order in which they submitted their email request.  
 
Prioritization is on a first-come first-served basis. An audio call-in number will be 
provided to participants who have submitted an email request. All callers will be muted 
upon calling and will be unmuted in the submission order after being recognized by the 
Chair by name. Up to three (3) minutes are allowed for each speaker. Signups for the 
Affordable Housing Advisory Board/July 12, 2021 will not be accepted after 30 minutes 
prior to the start of the hearing. Public comments offered using communications media 
technology will be afforded equal consideration as if the public comments were offered in 
person. You also can submit comments or any documents prior to the meeting by sending 
them to AffordableHousingServices@hillsboroughcounty.org.  
 
Note: Speakers are asked to follow common courtesy when speaking before the 
committee, and disruptive participants will be removed at the Chair’s discretion if they 
violate the following prohibitions: 

• Promoting, advertisement of, and/or solicitation for private businesses  

• Personal attacks against others, including committee or staff members 

Calls for violence, inappropriate language, racial and discriminatory comments, 
defamatory statements, and religious intolerance 



Hillsborough County 
Affordable Housing Advisory Board (AHAB) 

2021 Meeting Dates  
 

 
The following are the meeting dates for 2021, as approved at the November 

9, 2020 Board Meeting. All meetings begin at 9:00 am. 
 

Monday, January 11, 2021  
  

Monday, February 8, 2021  
  

Monday, March 8, 2021  
  

Monday, April 12, 2021  
  

Monday, May 10, 2021  
  

Monday, June 14, 2021  
  

Monday, July 12, 2021  
  

Monday, August 9, 2021  
  

Monday, September 13, 2021  
  

Monday, October 11, 2021  
  

Monday, November 8, 2021  
  

No Meeting December 2021 
 

*Dates are subject to approval by AHAB and to venue availability 
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1              P R O C E E D I N G S 
2      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Welcome, everyone.  I 
3 wanted to find out if we have any public 
4 comments today.
5      CLERK:  Commissioner, we do not have any 
6 public comments scheduled for today.
7      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Okay.  The first item 
8 to the agenda beyond Public Comments are the 
9 approval of the minutes for May 10th, 2021.

10      MR. MYERS:  Move for approval.
11      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Moved by Mr. Myers, 
12 second by Mark Wasserman.  Can we have a 
13 role call vote?
14      CLERK:  Overman.
15      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Yes.
16      CLERK:  Myers.  
17      MR. MYERS:  Yes.
18      CLERK:  Wasserman.
19      MR. WASSERMAN:  Yes.
20      CLERK:  Burton.
21      MS. BURTON:  Yes.
22      CLERK:  Lott.
23      MAYOR LOTT:  Yes.
24      CLERK:  Able.
25      MS. ABLE:  Yes.
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1      CLERK:  Jackson-Simms.
2      MS. JACKSON-SIMMS:  Yes.
3      CLERK:  Combs.
4      MS. COMBS:  Yes.
5      CLERK:  Hollis.
6      MR. HOLLIS:  Yes.
7      CLERK:  Gudes.  I don't hear him on the 
8 line.  But the motion is carried 9-0.
9      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 

10 very much.
11          With that, I have just a couple of 
12 updates.  But more importantly, we have an 
13 excellent presentation today that I'd love 
14 for everyone to hear.
15          We have had several good things 
16 happen in the area of affordable housing.  
17 We recently had a Home for Heroes dedicated 
18 for one of our veterans out in Riverview.  
19 That was a lot of fun to attend.  
20          You can see how veterans that have 
21 been impacted by their time and service have 
22 had an opportunity to have a home built by a 
23 fully independent group of philanthropists 
24 that have made that happen.  And it's great 
25 to see that happen.
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1          With that, I'd like to introduce 
2 Nicole McCleary.  She is the senior project 
3 leader at HART that is looking at our 
4 transit-oriented development program for the 
5 area through from downtown up to the 
6 University area.
7          What it does is, it gives us good 
8 research on future opportunities for us to 
9 declare transit-oriented development areas 

10 that helps HART focus on where transit can 
11 be fairly provided and gives us the proper 
12 incentives for affordable housing.
13          And with that, I'd like to 
14 recognize Nicole McCleary, if she's 
15 available, please.
16      MS. McCLEARY:  Good morning.  And thank 
17 you for having us.  
18          Today we are really excited to 
19 share with you our transit-oriented 
20 development study pilot project and just let 
21 you know where we are currently with the 
22 project, what we've been doing, and get some 
23 feedback from you-all.
24          So, I'll start with an overview.  
25 Just to let everyone know that this project 
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1 is in partnership with the City of Tampa and 
2 Hillsborough County.  We're setting the land 
3 use and development along the planned 
4 corridors for the BRT and the street car 
5 extension.  So it will improve transit 
6 service, connecting downtown Tampa to USF.  
7 Next slide, please.
8          So TOD, some of you may be 
9 familiar.  Some may not.  But it stands for 

10 "Transit-orientated development."  And TOD 
11 is actually designed to capitalize on access 
12 to transit, to really make using transit 
13 easy and accessible to those people living 
14 close to it, and to make it a choice for 
15 others that may be commuting in.  Next 
16 slide, please.
17          So, currently our project is 
18 actually three phases, and it's over 18 
19 months.  We are currently in the second 
20 phase.  We have completed a context 
21 assessment, which is really great.  
22          We evaluated current conditions 
23 along the study area and we really 
24 identified some opportunities for land use 
25 and development changes.
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1          We are now looking at policies and 
2 strategies, kind of really determining, 
3 reviewing the current policy, seeing what 
4 those holes are, those gaps, and how we can 
5 address those to have supportive TOD 
6 features within the study corridor.
7          The next step will be station area 
8 planning for the street car extension on 
9 Palm Avenue.  Next slide, please.

10          We actually developed five goals 
11 for this study, and they include protecting 
12 and improving the community character; 
13 really encouraging a diverse mix of use 
14 through the study corridor; creating safe, 
15 walkable, completed streets that are 
16 bikable; ensuring context sensitivity for 
17 new development that might be created; 
18 really including public spaces so there's 
19 areas to walk or ride your bike, play.
20          And then improving walking, biking, 
21 and transit both locally and regionally.  
22 Next slide, please.
23          So, one of the things I'd like to 
24 share with you guys today, we have an 
25 awesome consulting team, and here today we 
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1 have Steve Shucock from HDR, and then we 
2 have some representatives from S.B. Friedman 
3 that did our market assessment.  And they 
4 will get you to the meat of our study to 
5 date.
6      MR. SHUCOCK:  Thank you, Nicole.
7      MS. McCLEARY:  You're welcome, Steve.
8      MR. SHUCOCK:  So, the project is 
9 designed to look at land use implications 

10 and connection between land use and transit 
11 service, including the street car extension 
12 that's running -- planned to run from its 
13 current stop at Fort Brook Garage north 
14 through downtown to Palm Avenue.  
15          And then the BRT line, which HART 
16 is studying, which would look at a system 
17 that connects USF on Bruce B. Downs, down 
18 Fowler Avenue south, Nebraska a bit, cross 
19 over at Linebaugh to Florida, south from 
20 Florida to downtown, and then connecting 
21 with the street car system and serving the 
22 core of downtown Tampa.
23          Both projects are designed to 
24 provide really high-quality service, 
25 high-frequency service, and make it -- make 
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1 transit a real easy opportunity for folks to 
2 use to get to destinations across this 
3 project, and then connect to regional 
4 service to get elsewhere across the whole 
5 Tampa Bay region.
6          The study area itself, as I 
7 mentioned, is the communities along the 
8 corridor.  So we drew a line of about half a 
9 mile distance, which is about a 10-minute 

10 walk, from the proposed corridor and the 
11 stop locations.  
12          And you can see this shows you the 
13 location of the street car on the right-hand 
14 side serving downtown, up into the south end 
15 of Tampa Heights.
16          And then the street -- the BRT line 
17 runs through Tampa Heights and Seminole 
18 Heights, crosses the river right around 
19 Water Tower Park, continues north on 
20 Florida, turns east on Linebaugh, north on 
21 Nebraska, east on Fowler, and then north on 
22 Bruce B. Downs.
23          So this connects all of the 
24 communities along that area and serves the 
25 neighborhoods within walking distance of 
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1 that line.  
2          So we're looking at both what 
3 happens right on the line at stations, but 
4 also what happens within walking distance.
5          We've done -- As Nicole mentioned, 
6 we've completed a couple major reports, 
7 which are our first products of the study.  
8 The context assessment, and then we 
9 developed a briefing book, which is more 

10 high-level introduction to the study and to 
11 what we learned in our analysis.
12          So if you want to pick up either of 
13 these documents, start with the briefing 
14 book.  That will give you the high-level 
15 review of what we learned.  And then you can 
16 dive into more detail in the context 
17 assessment.
18          And a lot of what you'll hear next 
19 is included in the context assessment.  And 
20 that's the work that S.B. Friedman is doing 
21 as part of our team.
22          And just quickly, the strategies 
23 that we're working on focus on walking, 
24 biking and access to transit, promoting 
25 affordable housing and diversity of housing, 
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1 and encouraging transit-oriented development 
2 and protecting the character.
3          We're looking at applying land   
4 use -- new land use categories along the 
5 corridor that promote transit-oriented 
6 development, different scales based on the 
7 location.  
8          So higher intensity downtown and up 
9 by USF, more modest in-fill development 

10 along the corridors between USF and 
11 downtown.
12          And with that, I want to spend most 
13 of our time reviewing our affordable housing 
14 research and what we're working on for 
15 recommendations.  And I'll turn it over to 
16 S.B. Friedman for that.
17      MR. JOHNSON:  Good morning, everyone.  
18 My name is Katelyn Johnson, and I'm a 
19 project manager with S.B. Friedman.  
20          Our role on this project is 
21 conducting the market research and 
22 developing strategies related to affordable 
23 housing.  I'm also joined by my colleagues, 
24 Jeff Dickinson and Elizabeth Ginsberg.
25          To begin, we just wanted to talk 
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1 about housing affordability in regards to 
2 the concept of cost burden.  A residential 
3 unit is considered affordable if no more 
4 than 30 percent of a household's income goes 
5 towards housing costs.  While spending more 
6 than 30 percent of income on housing costs 
7 is considered cost burdened.  
8          Overall, there's approximately 
9 186,000 households that are cost burdened in 

10 Hillsborough County.
11          And to dive a little bit deeper 
12 into this data, we assessed cost burden as a 
13 function of housing balance by income level 
14 for owner-occupied and renter-occupied 
15 households.
16          So on this slide, you see the 
17 housing balance for owner-occupied 
18 households, and this shows the extent to 
19 which there's a mismatch between occupied 
20 housing units and the actual number of 
21 households in each income bracket.
22          Here we do see that the supply of 
23 owner-occupied housing units exceeds actual 
24 households at most income levels, with the 
25 exception of households earning greater than 
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1 75,000.
2          And this next slide, we've layered 
3 in additional data on cost burden, which is 
4 the dark red bar on the charts.  What we see 
5 is despite generally having the supply of 
6 units for each income bracket, the majority 
7 of owner-occupied households at or below 80 
8 percent.  Or those earning less than 50,000 
9 per year are cost burdened due to that 

10 mismatch between supply and higher income 
11 households living below their means.
12          In particular, the most cost 
13 burdened households are those earning less 
14 than 20,000, between 20,000 and 35,000.
15          On this next slide, we're looking 
16 at housing balance for renter-occupied 
17 housing.  I'm not sure -- There we go.  
18 Where we see a greater imbalance, especially 
19 for renter households with incomes less than 
20 20,000 a year, where the supply of 
21 affordable units is actually less than the 
22 number of households in that income bracket.
23          On the next slide, we again layer 
24 in this cost burden data for renter-occupied 
25 housing, and we find that over 100,000 
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1 renter-occupied household in the county 
2 earning less than 50,000 per year are cost 
3 burdened.
4          This includes nearly 90 percent of 
5 households earning less than 20,000 a year, 
6 and 85 percent of households earning between 
7 20,000 and 34,000.  
8          This is likely due, in part, both 
9 to the limit of supply of housing units that 

10 are affordable to folks in lower income 
11 households, as well as other higher income 
12 households living below their means.
13          And this points to the need for 
14 additional affordable housing units for very 
15 low-income households earning less than 30 
16 percent of AMI.
17          So to understand the housing 
18 affordability challenges, specifically along 
19 the BRT corridor that we're talking about, 
20 we looked at the existing supply of rental 
21 housing by sub-area to help inform our 
22 understanding of who could be impacted by 
23 the transit improvement.
24          So over the next few slides we're 
25 going to walk through the supply of 
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1 affordable housing, including legally 
2 restricted affordable housing.  You'll see 
3 that denoted as "LRA" on the slides.  
4          And then naturally-occurring 
5 affordable housing, which we'll refer to as 
6 NOA, which are those privately-owned market 
7 rate units, but with rents that are still 
8 affordable to households earning less than 
9 60 percent of AMI.

10          So, this chart provides an overview 
11 of occupied rental units by affordability 
12 type.  Overall, in the county there are 
13 about 64,000 affordable units, including 
14 about 22,000 legally restricted units.  
15          And then within the study area, 
16 there are approximately 7,150 affordable 
17 units.  And that's about 56 percent of 
18 rental-occupied units.  
19          So compared to the county overall, 
20 the study area does have a higher proportion 
21 of affordable units in their rental supply.
22          On the next slide, looking at the 
23 legally restricted inventory, this slide 
24 shows the spacial distribution of the 
25 roughly 22,000 units in the county.  And we 
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1 do see that the newer legally restricted 
2 projects built since 2010 have been 
3 primarily concentrated in downtown Tampa, 
4 East Tampa, and then the Brandon area.
5          Looking at the study area, 
6 approximately 18 percent of the legally 
7 restricted units in the county are in the 
8 study area.  And the study area has captured 
9 about 40 percent of the new units delivered 

10 in the last 10 years.
11          So on the next slide, within the 
12 study area we see that the legally 
13 restricted units are concentrated again in 
14 the downtown, as well as Tampa Heights and 
15 the Fowler and USF sub-areas.  
16          Larger developments in the study 
17 area include Robles Park and the Oaks at 
18 Riverview, which are both the Tampa Housing 
19 Authority projects.  
20          Additionally, the Encore district 
21 accounts for about 75 percent of new 
22 construction legally restricted units, and 
23 half of the total inventory in downtown.  
24 And much of the remaining inventory with an 
25 older product that was built prior to 2010.  
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1 Next slide, please, Steve.
2          So, over 70 percent of the legally 
3 restricted units in the study area are at 
4 risk to expire in the next 20 years.  
5          Of particular note, all of the 
6 legally restricted units in the northern 
7 three sub-areas are expected to lose 
8 restrictions in the next 20 years, and about 
9 half of the units in downtown and Tampa 

10 Heights are set to expire.
11          While many mission-driven nonprofit 
12 owners may choose to extend the 
13 affordability period, the level of risk for 
14 these units with the expiration could pose 
15 long-term affordability in the study area if 
16 there are for-profit entities that, you 
17 know, flip at-risk units to market rate once 
18 these requirements expire.
19          Shifting gears and looking at the 
20 NOA supply, overall the study area contains 
21 about 2,300 NOA units.  And the presence of 
22 NOA is extremely limited downtown Tampa 
23 Heights and then in Seminole Heights.  This 
24 is really where the market rate residential 
25 market is stronger.  
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1          NOA is more prevalent in weaker 
2 market rate residential markets, including 
3 the northern sub-areas of North Florida, 
4 Nebraska and Fowler, USF sub-areas.
5          On the next slide, the risk for NOA 
6 displacement varies throughout the study 
7 area.  This is based on the presence of 
8 NOA, as well as the market rate residential 
9 market conditions.  

10          So we see that downtown and Tampa 
11 Heights have the lowest risk for NOA 
12 displacement in the near term.  And this is 
13 due to the very limited presence of NOA and 
14 the strong market conditions appear to have 
15 already priced out NOA units.  So there's 
16 really not just many there to displace.
17          Given the low supply of NOA and the 
18 stronger market conditions, the Seminole 
19 Heights sub-area will likely continue to 
20 feel the pressures of increasing rental 
21 rates, and this could lead to enhanced 
22 displacement in the future.  
23          And then the sub-areas that have a 
24 higher proportion of NOA and very limited 
25 market rate investment occurring, such as 
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1 those two northern sub-areas, we see those 
2 as having the lowest risk for displacement 
3 in the near term.   So, the next slide.  
4          Given the varying supply of both 
5 legally restricted and NOA and the varying 
6 market conditions along the corridor, new 
7 construction and preservation will be 
8 needed.  And those -- the needs for both of 
9 those vary throughout the study area.

10          For example, in areas with higher 
11 risk for displacement, it could be more 
12 important to prioritize preservation 
13 strategies.  You can go to the next slide, 
14 Steve.
15          So, given the varying supply, we 
16 are in the process of developing our 
17 affordable housing tool kit.  
18          On the next slide, we have 
19 identified various tools that we are 
20 considering as part of our best practice 
21 tool kit.  We've organized these by five 
22 categories.  
23          So we have the housing programs, 
24 regulatory options, zoning options, funding 
25 mechanisms, and capacity building.  On the 
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1 next slide.  
2          As part of our tool kit, we are 
3 creating a dashboard that identifies the 
4 outcomes for affordable housing.  So that is 
5 whether this tool could be used to support 
6 new construction or preservation.  
7          We're also identifying if this is a 
8 tool that is currently being used by the 
9 city or the county.  And we're also thinking 

10 about the priority context or sub-areas 
11 where this tool could be most applicable in 
12 the future.
13          So this is our final slide.  As you 
14 can see, this is our preliminary 
15 organization of this tool kit.  We are in 
16 the process of conducting additional 
17 interviews with public sector folks who are 
18 actively involved in using these tools to 
19 understand the effectiveness of current 
20 programs.  
21          We're trying to figure out if there 
22 are tools that are not being used that 
23 should be being used, and really just 
24 understanding the effectiveness and capacity 
25 to implement these tools in the areas 
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1 sub-areas.
2          While we're specifically looking at 
3 the applicability of these tools along the 
4 BRT corridor, we do hope that this tool kit 
5 can be useful for other folks in thinking 
6 about ways to support housing affordability 
7 in similar context.
8          So, I know this presentation has 
9 covered a lot of information in a short 

10 amount of time.  Hopefully you all have a 
11 copy of the PowerPoint in the packet.  And 
12 we'd be happy to answer any questions that 
13 you have.
14      MS. HOWELL:  Madame Chairman.
15      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Sure, one second.  I 
16 want to thank you so much for that 
17 presentation.  It was exactly what I wanted.  
18          Because I do believe there's a 
19 strong connection between transit and 
20 affordable housing, but more importantly, 
21 how do we put policy in place and make 
22 recommendations to the Board of County 
23 Commission on how to really foster the 
24 issues?  
25          And the tool kit was a good place 



Executive Reporting Service

6 (Pages 21 to 24)

b39c3663-da92-4e6a-a22a-fdd870a308c9Electronically signed by Jerry Lefler (101-146-393-3289)

Page 21

1 to kind of frame that conversation as we 
2 move forward.
3          Mayor Lott, you're recognized.
4      MAYOR LOTT:  I just want to start off by 
5 saying that this has probably been one of 
6 the best reports I've seen in a long time.  
7 The data, the information, the tool kit, 
8 everything about it.  
9          I sure hope that this gets 

10 distributed to all the municipalities, 
11 because this is a fantastic -- hats off to 
12 the team that put this together.  This is an 
13 excellent report.
14      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you very much.  
15 With that, one of the reasons why I wanted 
16 to bring this, and we're also blessed with a 
17 new appointee who is our appointee from 
18 HART.  HART recently had our representative 
19 resign for this position, the appointment, 
20 and Commissioner Myers was the alternate.  
21          According to HART's rules, they 
22 typically will make an appointment and then 
23 have an alternate position.
24          With that, when Mr. Tyler Hudson 
25 resigned his appointment, the HART board 
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1 appointed Commissioner Myers as the 
2 appointee here.  So we have another strong 
3 affordable housing advocate, as well as 
4 transit advocate on the board.  
5          And I thought this was perfect 
6 timing having you join us.  Thank you very, 
7 very much.  I appreciate it.
8          Part of the reason why I've been 
9 following along this TOD study and recognize 

10 that much of the conversation is in line 
11 with what we have been wrestling with, where 
12 do we help foster affordable housing?  What 
13 kind of challenges do we need to address?  
14 How can we tie it to a family's budget, 
15 which frequently is exacerbated by the need 
16 to have a vehicle?  
17          That takes another $10,000 per 
18 vehicle out of a family's budget.  And where 
19 is it best appropriate to focus our energies 
20 on creating not only the regulatory required 
21 affordable housing as well as support 
22 naturally-occurring affordable housing?  
23          That also became an issue when we 
24 started seeing -- part of the reason why we 
25 talked about the -- my office and the board 
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1 approved the Tenant Bill of Rights, is to 
2 make sure that landlords and tenants had a 
3 clear understanding of what the rules are 
4 and how to best operate with them based on 
5 source of income, which is part of the 
6 reason why we brought that forward in the 
7 Unincorporated Hillsborough County.  
8          And we're still working with the 
9 cities and municipalities on making sure 

10 there's an opportunity to have similar or 
11 same set of rules and ordinances in place in 
12 those municipalities.
13          But that being said, I thought it 
14 was also very important for us to understand 
15 how we prioritize the affordable housing 
16 efforts in Hillsborough County.  
17          What we've heard today is the 
18 preservation is important, that new 
19 construction is important, but we also heard 
20 that we've got a great deal of properties 
21 that are going to lose their protection for 
22 affordable housing coming down the pipe just 
23 in this primary area, not to mention what's 
24 happening in the county area, unincorporated 
25 county area.
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1          So I just want to make sure that 
2 everyone on the board was sensitive to my 
3 constant search, sense of urgency on those 
4 issues, and appreciation of the HFA for the 
5 new deals that they are using, and the tax 
6 credit programs that maintain their 
7 regulatory protections.  Their LARPs don't 
8 expire, if I'm not mistaken.
9          And so I just want to thank the 

10 team for helping us understand what tools we 
11 could use here at the Affordable Housing 
12 Advisory Board when we are working with our 
13 elected leaders, as well as our developers 
14 that are looking for opportunity to develop, 
15 to assist us in the mission associated with 
16 that, as well as those contractors that we 
17 work with on preserving housing in our area 
18 that could in fact sustain our 
19 naturally-occurring rental properties for 
20 people that want to live here.
21          Are there other questions?  I'm not 
22 seeing hands raised, so I'm not -- for those 
23 that are online.  Are there any questions 
24 online?  
25      MAYOR LOTT:  Madame Chair.  The study 
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1 area, what's the time frame on this study?  
2      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Actually, I'm going 
3 to let the team actually answer that 
4 question.  It's been going on.  It's a 
5 HART-funded study.  I think we're about 
6 mid-way.  She said we were Level 2, but I'm 
7 not sure what the actual timeline is.  Could 
8 someone answer that question?  
9      MS. McCLEARY:  Sure.  I could answer 

10 that.  The time frame for the study was 
11 approximately 18 months.  We should finish 
12 up with the study actually this fall.
13          So it was originally scheduled to 
14 be completed in September, but then with the 
15 pandemic, we pushed back a little bit.  Our 
16 schedule fell back a little bit.  So I would 
17 say early this fall.  I would say 
18 October/November this fall.
19      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank 
20 you, Ms. McCleary, I appreciate that.  Does 
21 that answer your question?
22      MAYOR LOTT:  Yes, ma'am.
23      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Okay, great.  Are 
24 there other questions?  Okay.  I saw Connie 
25 Burton.  Okay.  You had your hand raised.  
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1 And then I'll call on you, Meredith.
2      MS. BURTON:  Even with having this 
3 information, how will it then be respected 
4 by developers, various governmental, you 
5 know, entities?  
6          Because, you know, as I always 
7 advocate what I see in East Tampa, people 
8 are being pushed out rapidly.  Every day, 
9 you know.  And there hasn't been a real 

10 desire from, say, within the city to abort 
11 people that is living below a certain income 
12 level to remain in our community.  
13          It is happening in East Tampa.  
14 Houses are going well up to $400,000, and 
15 now the bulk of those people are ending up 
16 somewhere in the county.  They're ending up 
17 somewhere, but it's not within inside of 
18 neighborhoods that was once affordable.
19          So, you know, thank you for the 
20 study, and hopefully it just don't become a 
21 document.
22      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Oh, thank you very 
23 much for that comment.  And it's certainly 
24 not going to become just a document on the 
25 shelf, that's for sure.
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1          But that's part of the reason why I 
2 wanted to bring it to the board.  Even 
3 though they're not finished with their work, 
4 it is because of our urgency in addressing 
5 housing and what's happening in the market 
6 right now as far as real estate is 
7 concerned, I thought it would be wise for us 
8 to at least see this element, which they 
9 have for the most part completed.  

10          So thank you very much for your 
11 comments, Ms. Burton.  And I certainly agree 
12 and understand.
13          And that's another reason why 
14 preservation of our existing housing stock 
15 and being able to maintain those households 
16 so they're not displaced as the market heats 
17 up or has continued to heat up I think is a 
18 critical part of our mission here.
19          Meredith Able.
20      MS. ABLE:  I have a comment, and I also 
21 have a question.  I have a friend who used 
22 to live just outside of Temple Terrace who 
23 literally lived in what we might call a 
24 "shack."  And he was a disabled senior, 
25 visually-impaired, and he was just relocated 
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1 to a new affordable home along the corridor.  
2          And I picked his brain a little bit 
3 when I visited his new place that he's so 
4 proud of.  I wanted to know a little bit 
5 about the process about how he got there.
6          And I just wanted everyone to know 
7 that this hard work is paying off.  I think 
8 it's going to prolong his life.  He seems 
9 happy and he seems healthy, and he can 

10 access transit and use what limited vision 
11 he has left to adjust to his new home.  
12          And I'm really happy to see the 
13 efforts that are made there and the 
14 continued efforts to protect that.
15          But my question is, on the study 
16 goals, it says "Ensure context sensitive 
17 buildings and public spaces."  And I was 
18 just wondering if you could go into a little 
19 bit more detail about that and explain how 
20 that's being accomplished.
21      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Whoever wants to 
22 answer that question from the team.
23      CLERK:  I was on mute.  I'm sorry.  I 
24 can tackle that one.  
25      Part of the study -- set of 



Executive Reporting Service

8 (Pages 29 to 32)

b39c3663-da92-4e6a-a22a-fdd870a308c9Electronically signed by Jerry Lefler (101-146-393-3289)

Page 29

1 recommendations we'll make in the study have 
2 to do with how new development fits within 
3 the neighborhoods along the corridor.  
4          So we do have a concern about the 
5 scale of projects, the transitions between 
6 new development on the corridor and the 
7 neighborhoods that are adjacent to the 
8 corridor, as well as the in-fill in the 
9 neighborhood.

10          So in some cases we're making 
11 recommendations for the introduction of what 
12 we call "missing middle housing types," 
13 which are the -- in between a single-family 
14 and an apartment building.  
15          There's a lot of types that aren't 
16 well represented in the market that provide 
17 additional diversity of kinds of housing.
18          But we want to make sure that that 
19 housing fits the neighborhood.  So we're 
20 really thinking about the scale, the form of 
21 those buildings, how they relate to the 
22 neighbors.
23          So that's what we mean when we talk 
24 about context sensitive buildings.  It's 
25 really the relationship between the new 
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1 development and the existing neighborhoods.
2      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  To make sure we're 
3 real clear with the language here, because 
4 "new development" sounds, you know, for not 
5 single-family.  We're going to be looking at 
6 other types of housing types, correct?  
7          And so I think it's important for 
8 the communities to recognize those housing 
9 types frequently do exist, but they're not 

10 as prevalent.  So when we're talking about 
11 other housing types, Steve, in your mindset, 
12 are you speaking of duplexes, townhomes, 
13 quads, multi-family?  
14          And then how do we help 
15 neighborhoods not push back against    
16 single -- anything other than single-family 
17 homes?
18      CLERK:  I think that's one of the 
19 questions.  We have had a little bit -- not 
20 a lot, but a little bit of pushback about 
21 the idea of new duplexes, triplexes, and 
22 housing types introduced next to the 
23 neighborhood or between the corridor and the 
24 single-family neighborhood.
25          What we need to focus on is the 
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1 scale of those projects to help people 
2 understand that these are not larger scale 
3 apartments that are getting stuck between 
4 the houses, that they can be developed in a 
5 way that are compatible.  
6          And there's a lot in the historic 
7 neighborhoods now.  In Tampa's historic 
8 neighborhoods before single-family zoning 
9 was in place, you would see naturally a mix 

10 of single families, attached housing, very 
11 small scale townhouse projects and small 
12 apartment projects.  
13          That provided for the needs of a 
14 whole range of kinds of people and types of 
15 households in those neighborhoods.  So we're 
16 trying to reintroduce really an old idea 
17 about mixed housing in the existing 
18 neighborhoods.
19      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 
20 very much.  Yeah.  I've noticed driving 
21 around in the Heights area there are 
22 several, like, apartment buildings that were 
23 built in the 20's, 30's and 40's.  Well, they 
24 were built then.  They can be built again, 
25 and still assimilate into the community 
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1 without causing a great deal of angst.
2          But along the corridors, too, 
3 having, you know, larger buildings to 
4 protect the single-family houses from a 
5 major artery such as Florida or Nebraska, 
6 that's within our code now, as having more 
7 density up close and then gradually moving 
8 towards less dense or towards single-family 
9 homes within the City of Tampa's Code.

10          So where we can actually work 
11 within those rules, within those land codes, 
12 but also in the county when we're looking at 
13 where affordable housing is being built on 
14 our major corridors that may not have been 
15 identified as, you know, a BRT, for example, 
16 or a bus rapid transit or a transit-oriented 
17 emphasis area, whatever the wording that 
18 HART chooses to use.  
19          We need to look at where housing is 
20 being done in those areas to help facilitate 
21 the household budget that is looking for 
22 either naturally-occurring affordable 
23 housing or regulatory-required affordable 
24 housing.
25          Are there other questions?  
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1 Ms. Burton, you had a question.  And then 
2 Commissioner Myers, I'll recognize you.  I'm 
3 sorry.  Cody.
4      MS. BURTON:  Is there a reason that race 
5 was not included in, say, the makeup?  I 
6 mean, included in the study?  Everybody 
7 needs a house, but there are factors that 
8 eliminate certain groups.  
9          And I want to know why race was not 

10 included in, say, some of the percentage of 
11 who is able within these income guidelines 
12 to, you know, maintain housing in certain 
13 areas?
14      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Good question.
15      CLERK:  We did -- when we looked at the 
16 existing neighborhoods and we looked at the 
17 makeup of the folks that lived there, we did 
18 look at race, as well as a number of other 
19 factors.  We did look at race.  
20          We looked at income, access to a 
21 private automobile, reliance on transit, as 
22 factors to think about as we considered what 
23 our policies -- what sort of neighborhoods 
24 and folks our policies would affect.  So 
25 that was one of the factors.  
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1          When we looked at affordability, we 
2 didn't specifically call out race to look at 
3 the affordability or the availability of 
4 housing available across the footprint of 
5 the project.
6          That would be an extra level of 
7 detail that we could possibly get into, 
8 either -- probably through an additional 
9 study.  

10          But in general, we tried to 
11 understand the potential impacts of 
12 recommendations, but we didn't look 
13 specifically at affordability by race.
14      MS. BURTON:  And the reason I want to 
15 raise that is that what we are seeing now in 
16 East Tampa is that when new builds are 
17 occurring, most people that are moving into 
18 East Tampa and can afford the $400,000 homes 
19 is non-African people.  
20          And so in that sense, the community 
21 feels a sense of gentrifying the 
22 neighborhood, because the developers are 
23 purchasing property, people are building, 
24 and those who have that type of income tend 
25 to be non-African people.
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1          And so, you know, we're developing, 
2 you could say even it's affordable, but the 
3 lack of African people being able to remain 
4 in certain neighborhoods is being -- it's a 
5 factor.  It is happening.
6      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  I'm very aware of 
7 that.  And that is a challenge.
8          One of the things that I learned 
9 recently at another workshop was that 

10 frequently our mortgage underwriters, those 
11 that take the application for a mortgage, 
12 are not persons of color.  
13          So in the work that we will be 
14 doing in Hillsborough County on the equity 
15 profile that is coming up soon for decision 
16 and moving forward, one of those -- that 
17 issue is one of the items I want to make 
18 sure we take a look at, just to address what 
19 can happen in displacement when communities 
20 do improve, but does that mean moving people 
21 that live there out?  
22          And that shouldn't necessarily be, 
23 you know, what happens.
24          With that, I'm going to call on 
25 Commissioner Myers, and then Cody Powell.  
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1 And then, Liz Strom, I see your hand raised 
2 too.  
3      MR. DICKENS:  I'm sorry.  This is Jeff 
4 Dickens.  I just wanted to add one more 
5 thing to the question of race, if that's all 
6 right.
7      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Sure, go ahead.
8      MR. DICKENS:  Thanks.  I don't know the 
9 history of Tampa as well as I know the 

10 history of Chicago, but I very strongly 
11 agree with the questions and the comments.  
12          I know that the city and the county 
13 and the private sector did an awful lot of 
14 things for an awful long time to make life 
15 bad for black people in Chicago.  
16          And I don't know if that's true in 
17 Tampa, but I think around here I think we 
18 feel we're beginning to be better about 
19 feeling a special responsibility to try to 
20 do something to make life better for black 
21 people basically.
22          So I don't know if that's the trend 
23 in metro Tampa, but certainly redlining 
24 wasn't an accident.  All those sorts of 
25 things weren't accidents.  Those were 
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1 conscious decisions by powerful people.  And 
2 I hope that continues to be part of the 
3 conversation in Tampa, to try to take some 
4 action to remedy some of the injustices, 
5 essentially, are historically part of 
6 housing in this country.
7      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 
8 very much for that.  I appreciate those 
9 comments.

10          And yes, we have that history too.  
11 So thank you very much.
12          Commissioner Myers.
13      COMMISSIONER MYERS:  Thank you, Madame 
14 Chair.  
15          Yes, we need, on that particular 
16 issue you were just talking about, to change 
17 the culture, the mindset.  This is really 
18 important.  That we can no longer think that 
19 African-American people need to be 
20 overlooked when we're trying to stay in our 
21 own homes and people come in, the 
22 developers, and want to move us out.
23          I do agree many times that the 
24 underwriters are not people of color and 
25 they're not sensitive to make sure that we 
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1 can qualify for a home.  So that's another 
2 reason we're pushed out, too.  
3          Because we met the same 
4 qualifications as others, and yet the 
5 opportunities for African-Americans still do 
6 not exist today.
7          So once we work with everyone to 
8 begin to change the culture and the mindset, 
9 we will begin to see great opportunities 

10 happen for the black and brown community.
11          But I raised my hand to address the 
12 question of when one of the gentlemen said 
13 we were having pushback, it is important 
14 that we have community engagement.  
15          As you continue to work on the 
16 study, you also need to consider being out 
17 in the community and meeting with the 
18 community to share the different affordable 
19 housing tools that we're talking about this 
20 morning so that the community can be 
21 acceptable and help us in a new trend with 
22 affordable housing.  
23          So I just wanted to share that with 
24 us.  Thank you.
25      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you very much.  
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1 They have several outreach meetings, but I 
2 think a majority of them have been online so 
3 far.  And there are several more outreach 
4 workshops coming as they work through their 
5 project.
6          But I do believe that it would be 
7 wise for us to do potentially a few outreach 
8 programs to talk about not only affordable 
9 housing, but also to increase the dialogue 

10 with the development community to help them 
11 understand why that's a great reason to go 
12 through the effort of understanding how to 
13 develop affordable housing in Hillsborough 
14 County.  
15          Because we definitely have the 
16 need.  We definitely have the demand.  Now 
17 we just have to figure out how to create the 
18 supply.
19          And that's what we heard earlier.  
20 It is a supply issue.  And we have to 
21 address it if we're going to not continue to 
22 displace people with higher rents and higher 
23 home prices that exceed the maximum allowed 
24 for the first-time home buyer program.
25          Because in some areas of this map 
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1 that we just looked at, the housing prices 
2 are getting to a place where they exceed the 
3 eligibility criteria for a first-time home 
4 buyer.  So I think that's something we have 
5 to also be very sensitive to.
6          Mr. Powell, you're recognized.
7      MR. POWELL:  Thank you, Madame Chair.
8          First of all, a really great 
9 presentation.  I like the data that's in 

10 here.  It's just fantastic.  So I want to 
11 applaud you all for that.
12          Sort of to my question is kind of 
13 to what Ms. Burton brought up earlier and 
14 what you just brought up, Commissioner.  How 
15 do we make things more affordable?  
16          When I look at the corridor for the 
17 transit-oriented development, the dirt alone 
18 is going to be very expensive.  Those are 
19 going to be along, like, commercial areas.
20          And you brought up about how the 
21 housing in East Tampa, Ms. Burton, is 
22 approaching, you know, $400,000, which is 
23 making it unaffordable for people and for 
24 first-time home buyer programs, you know, as 
25 well as for those.



Executive Reporting Service

11 (Pages 41 to 44)

b39c3663-da92-4e6a-a22a-fdd870a308c9Electronically signed by Jerry Lefler (101-146-393-3289)

Page 41

1          So are we looking at, as part of 
2 this study -- And I brought this question up 
3 in our workshop that we had for the Planning 
4 Commission on the density bonus.  And I 
5 don't know if it will get anywhere.  I'll 
6 continue to ask it until it finally does.
7          But do we have, or are we looking 
8 at -- you know, do we have any regulations 
9 in the county that are unnecessarily driving 

10 up the cost of housing?  
11          What do we have in place that might 
12 be, you know, making it more expensive to 
13 build a home, that then prices out someone 
14 from being able to afford "X" house?  
15          I can think of some things on my 
16 own, just from conversations that I've had 
17 with, you know, builders on -- there is 
18 certain architectural design regulations 
19 that just because of that one regulation, 
20 you know, it drives up the cost -- it adds 
21 10 to $15,000.
22          And I would imagine that if we, you 
23 know, were to kind of go through some of 
24 those regulations and see what can be 
25 curtailed a little bit in order for there to 
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1 be some cost savings, we might be able to, 
2 you know, reduce that by 35, $50,000.  Then 
3 it just makes it more affordable.
4          So has that been thought of as part 
5 of this study?
6      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Probably not this 
7 study.  But I'll let her answer.
8      MS. HOWELL:  Commissioner, this is 
9 Ms. Howell.  And I apologize.  I'm not able 

10 to come on video.  
11          Mr. Powell, thank you so much for 
12 your comments, and I'll respond to those.
13          So, we look at a number of 
14 different things.  I work with the 
15 Development Services Department very, very 
16 closely.  So as we provide for municipal 
17 services, I want to say the cost of 
18 everything is increasing.  
19          But the amount of investments that 
20 are going into affordable housing has also 
21 increased dramatically and exponentially 
22 offer the years.  
23          So, some of the things that we're 
24 really beginning to take a look at is, you 
25 know, how displacement is affecting the 
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1 people.  How, you know, when people -- when 
2 publicly invested housing developments come 
3 up in a community, how that sometimes 
4 disbands the social support systems of many 
5 of the people that are currently living 
6 there, and how we can do a better job 
7 policing and coming together and developing 
8 practices.
9          It's not just in policies, but it's 

10 in practices of how we can better serve the 
11 people that are in need, you know.
12          So, one thing in particular that we 
13 have been looking at is just put a focus on 
14 displacement, you know, and ensuring that a 
15 certain percentage of the people from an 
16 area get a preference or a priority to those 
17 units.
18          Because we know that if they have 
19 to move, that they move total support 
20 systems.  They lose their babysitters.  They 
21 lose their rides to work.  They lose a 
22 tremendous amount of support in those areas.  
23          And so some of those we can put a 
24 dollar to, but some of those we can't put a 
25 dollar amount to.  But they certainly are 
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1 invaluable in nature.
2          And that's some of the things that 
3 we can do, or at least one of the tools that 
4 we can implement to ensure a certain 
5 percentage of the people living in the area 
6 have priority access to those units.
7          And, you know, that's with rental.  
8 In the single-family development area, I 
9 mean, there is just a host of things that 

10 we're able to do, including subsidy, but not 
11 just limited to subsidy.
12      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Do you want to follow 
13 up on that?
14      MR. POWELL:  Thank you, Ms. Howell.  I 
15 appreciate that.  I don't think that really 
16 answered my question, though, as it applied 
17 to, are we just considering, you know, 
18 things for county regulations, you know, 
19 within like Land Development Code or 
20 Building Services, is what I was speaking 
21 about.
22          I definitely hear what you said, 
23 but I just think that, a, if my question 
24 that I asked, if it's not being done, that's 
25 fine.  
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1          I just think that it's something 
2 that we, you know, should consider, and it's 
3 just an additional, you know, avenue towards 
4 making housing more affordable.  
5          If you can cut costs, a penny saved 
6 is a penny earned.  At least that's what my 
7 dad told me.
8          So if we can figure out ways to 
9 make it more, you know, the cost of it, then 

10 we're going to just have a better 
11 opportunity for people to a lower barrier of 
12 entry, is my point.
13      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Right.  So I think 
14 what I hear you asking is, you know, what 
15 things do we have in place that help make it 
16 less expensive for developing affordable 
17 housing?  
18          And part of it is, well, time is 
19 money.  So the expedited processing is one 
20 of those items.
21          Two, there's a significant number 
22 of waivers available for impact fees and 
23 other fees for affordable housing 
24 development.  So that helps keep the cost -- 
25 all of those fees have gone up, but it does 
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1 help.  And mitigating some of those 
2 increased costs for new development.
3          And then three, I think to your 
4 point, you know, are there housing types and 
5 design specs that could be standardized in 
6 order to approve the -- not only the cost of 
7 the home, but also the affordability of the 
8 home?  
9          So, for example, the projects that 

10 are being built that are down in South 
11 county that are single-family homes that 
12 have a very, very high level of insulation, 
13 for example, that actually -- you know, I 
14 think the technology of the building makes 
15 it where the electric bill is pretty much 
16 zip.  You know what I mean?  Or very close.
17          That adds to the value of the home, 
18 but it also adds to the affordability of the 
19 home.  
20          And while it may cost more to do 
21 that, long-term that home has become much 
22 more affordable, because they're not paying 
23 a $300 a month electric bill, you know, in 
24 the summer.
25          So I think there's ways we can look 
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1 at how we partner with our development 
2 services and our zoning and our land code if 
3 in the area of generally -- various 
4 different tool kits, as they're doing here, 
5 in housing types and incentives where 
6 affordable housing is being built, no matter 
7 where it's being built.  
8          Whether it's in the cities or 
9 whether it's in the county, a set of tools, 

10 which we've looked at before, would be very, 
11 very helpful.  And communicating that to the 
12 development community would also be probably 
13 very beneficial.
14          And I have Ms. Strom, then Kate 
15 Jackson-Simms.  And then I'll come back to 
16 you, Commissioner Myers, if you had 
17 something else.
18      MS. STROM:  Thank you, Commissioner.  I 
19 also want to congratulate the authors of the 
20 study who did such an excellent job with it.
21          I think the comment I have actually 
22 ties Mr. Powell's questions back to some of 
23 the earlier discussion on density.  
24          I feel like some of the main ways 
25 we make housing more affordable is being 
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1 able to use land more efficiently and being 
2 able to eliminate some of the off-street 
3 parking requirements.
4          This ties in nicely to the reason 
5 we're here studying this in the first place.  
6 The whole idea is that we have transit in 
7 these corridors, and so transit makes 
8 housing more affordable, because families 
9 don't need that first or second car.  But in 

10 order for transit to be viable, we need more 
11 density.
12          And so I understand why we are 
13 concerned about selling higher density to 
14 people who are used to living in 
15 single-family neighborhoods.  But that is so 
16 essential.
17          We cannot have all the things we 
18 want.  If we want to have transit, we cannot 
19 have single-family zoning in core 
20 neighborhoods.
21          If we want to preserve the natural 
22 areas outside our core, we cannot have 
23 single-family zoning in core neighborhoods.
24          So there are many ways that we can 
25 use design and community engagement to make 
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1 people feel comfortable with multi-family 
2 housing.  But it is definitely essential.  
3          And also if we have multi-family 
4 housing and good transit, we don't need to 
5 make developers build parking lots and 
6 garages, and that's going to cut down on the 
7 cost housing also.
8          So these things really all tie 
9 together.  Thank you.

10      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 
11 very much for your comments.
12          Ms. Jackson-Simms, you're 
13 recognized.
14      MS. JACKSON-SIMMS:  Thank you, Madame 
15 Chair.  
16          I want to circle back to a couple 
17 of the comments that have been made.  First 
18 and foremost, I want to echo my 
19 congratulations to the team that worked on 
20 this.  This is what my career has been spent 
21 in, and my master's degree.  So, your report 
22 is an excellent report.
23          Let's circle back, though, to the 
24 point on what we're going to do with the 
25 report.  We heard the young lady say that 
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1 they should be completed sometime around 
2 October or November.  So to ensure that 
3 we're just not having a report that does 
4 collect dust on a shelf, right now we should 
5 be looking at how we're preparing to 
6 implement this report.
7          And I don't mean just with the 
8 county.  I mean with the city.  Because a 
9 lion's share of this area is within the 

10 city's jurisdiction.  And let's face it, we 
11 all know that sometimes it's a tough sell 
12 with the city.
13          So we definitely need an 
14 interdepartmental and interjurisdictional 
15 committee to begin to come together to 
16 discuss some of the preliminary findings on 
17 this and to begin to do the assessments of 
18 the various departments.
19          The comments on East Tampa, those 
20 we're going to need the city and the city's 
21 Building Department, the city's zoning 
22 regulations to be reviewed.  
23          Because my experience has shown 
24 that there have been some zoning 
25 requirements within the city boundaries that 
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1 make affordable housing more difficult to do 
2 in certain areas.
3          So if we are going to be serious 
4 about it, we need to start the legwork now.  
5 But it cannot just be Hillsborough County.  
6 It's got to be the jurisdictions coming to 
7 the table as well.  
8          And I would suggest that we 
9 strongly push for Ms. Howell's department to 

10 take the lead, because if we're serious 
11 about housing, we can't let another 
12 department lead this task.  It has to be the 
13 department that has the understanding.
14          So now's the time for us to get to 
15 work.
16      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you, 
17 Ms. Jackson-Simms.  I appreciate those 
18 comments.  
19          And yes, I've been trying to tear 
20 down silos since I got here.  So I'm on 
21 board.
22          Well, thank you very, very much.  
23 And thank you to this team.  You guys have 
24 done a marvelous job of actually shining a 
25 light on how the connection between transit 
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1 and affordable housing is critical.  
2          But more importantly, how we as an 
3 Affordable Housing Advisory Board can 
4 identify opportunities for helping the 
5 process of developing affordable housing, 
6 and how critical it is that we cross those 
7 lines when it comes to land development, 
8 transit, as well as even home design.  
9          So that was an excellent question.  

10 I appreciate everyone's feedback.
11          I'm not seeing any other hands 
12 raised.  Ms. Simms, your hand is up again?
13      MS. JACKSON-SIMMS:  No, ma'am.  I just 
14 didn't take it down.
15      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Okay, great.  All 
16 right.  Excellent.
17          I'm not seeing any other hands 
18 raised or any other comments.  We're going 
19 to move on.  
20      Mr. Wasserman, you're recognized.
21      MR. WASSERMAN:  Thank you.  The 
22 insulation that you mentioned before, and 
23 tieing down roofs and all of these things 
24 that make homes safer and reduce the cost of 
25 electricity and reduce the cost of insurance 
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1 increase the cost of the house and have 
2 significant impacts on the affordability of 
3 that house.  Or apartment or duplex or 
4 whatever it is.
5          So it's a balancing act between 
6 both.  And that is -- that's what this 
7 committee is all about, is balancing 
8 affordability with, to some extent, greed of 
9 apartment owners, of people who are buying 

10 homes in areas and they're going through the 
11 gentrification process.  
12          I mean, I had breakfast this 
13 weekend in a small little place on Florida 
14 that years ago was a very affordable area, 
15 and now you park on the side street and you 
16 can see that it's no longer affordable.
17          And so I share Ms. Burton's 
18 significant concern about, as I've said a 
19 number of times during my term on this 
20 board, is that you can only squeeze so far.  
21          This has got to be a combination 
22 of -- a combined effort of government, of 
23 business, of everybody involved in the 
24 housing industry to make sure that there is 
25 enough affordable housing.
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1          The work that this committee did, 
2 this report shows, is that the availability 
3 at the lower income levels is getting worse 
4 and worse and worse.  
5          Quite frankly, that strata, that 
6 group needs it the most.  And those are the 
7 people that are just getting more and more 
8 stressed and -- financially stressed, and 
9 personally stressed, I would assume.

10          And so we've got to work on that 
11 balancing act that makes -- that is okay for 
12 something to be not as -- I want to say not 
13 as safe.  But slightly less safe to reduce 
14 the cost.
15      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Understood.  Thank 
16 you very much.  I appreciate that.
17          And yes, we are running -- we're 
18 running with scissors right now.  We've got 
19 a potential eviction crisis about to happen.  
20 We've got people still unable to go get 
21 fully employed to make enough to be able to 
22 actually cover the cost of day care as they 
23 go back to work, if they don't have 
24 assistance like access to transit where it's 
25 less costly to move around.  
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1          And rents are increasing at a rate 
2 that is frightening, honestly.
3          So we have our work cut out for us.  
4 That's why I say a sense of urgency in 
5 moving forward on possibly looking at fall 
6 outreach to work not only with landlords, 
7 but also the developers who are helping them 
8 be part of our supply issue, but also in 
9 working with our land use and development 

10 services partners, whether it be at the 
11 county or the cities, to find ways that we 
12 can facilitate making it easier for that 
13 development.
14          Now, affordable housing development 
15 always takes longer than we want it to.  But 
16 we have to start somewhere.  And that was 
17 part of the reason why I wanted to have this 
18 conversation, because it gives us some 
19 really good guidelines on how we get 
20 started.
21          So thank you very, very much for 
22 it.  
23          I don't currently have a 
24 legislative update; however, do we have 
25 anyone on the call that would be interested 
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1 in bringing up what's happening?  I know 
2 they're out of session right now.
3          We pretty much got our, you know, 
4 our information regarding the Sadowski Trust 
5 at the last meeting.  While it's 
6 frustrating, we're getting about what we had 
7 been getting with the sweeps.  
8          But I do want to continue to work 
9 with our state delegates and our local 

10 representatives at the State and the House 
11 and the Senate in order to address issues 
12 where affordable housing is in crisis.
13          And one of them is something that 
14 I'm exploring at the moment when it comes to 
15 our corporate leases.  We have the ability 
16 in Florida for a real estate investment 
17 trust or an investor to come in and 
18 literally put money down on the property and 
19 then have, by contract in their lease, just 
20 about a hundred percent of the cost of 
21 maintaining that property on the renter.
22          It's literally not -- I can't even 
23 imagine why that's allowed, but it's there.  
24 I'm doing a little bit of research on how we 
25 level that playing field a little bit.  
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1          But there currently doesn't appear 
2 to be anything in the Florida law that 
3 prohibits that.
4          And so I will be working with our 
5 legislators and our legal teams to come take 
6 a look at that and see if there's 
7 opportunities to suggest to our legislators 
8 to level that playing field a little bit.
9          So other than that, I really didn't 

10 have anything else.  Does anyone else have 
11 anything they want to add?  Mark.
12      MS. HOWELL:  Commissioner.
13      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Yes, ma'am.
14      MS. HOWELL:  This is Sheryl Howell 
15 again, Director of Affordable Housing.
16          I just want to say that we did get 
17 our allocation estimate sent to us last 
18 Thursday.  So we're looking at $7.1 million 
19 allocation for this year for Hillsborough 
20 County.  
21          I want to say the City of Tampa 
22 will get approximately $2 million.  So the 
23 region itself will get about 9 -- a little 
24 over $9 million from SHIP funding.
25          This year is a little bit 
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1 different, though -- Well, it's a lot 
2 different -- because they swept the funds.  
3 And so typically we get access to all of the 
4 SHIP funding at the beginning of the year, 
5 which would be July 1st.  But because they 
6 swept the SHIP funding, now we're only going 
7 to get the funding incrementally.  
8          And so yes, they anticipate us 
9 receiving all of the funding, but we'll 

10 probably only get our first disbursement in 
11 October.
12          So we're going to get the funding 
13 as the state receives the funding, which is 
14 a lot different than the way it had been.  
15 And so it means it's harder to plan out 
16 larger projects as well.
17          So, I did want to share that 
18 information with you, and I'll keep you up 
19 to speed.
20      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank 
21 you.  I hate to say it, but I keep getting 
22 worse news.
23          But I also want to say "Thank you" 
24 to Hillsborough County for making the $10 
25 million annual contribution.  At least this 
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1 local leadership here recognizes the value 
2 of investing in affordable housing and 
3 giving the resources available to especially 
4 our very low-income population where the 
5 need is the greatest.
6          Mr. Wasserman, you're recognized.  
7      MR. WASSERMAN:  A lot of syllables 
8 there.
9          We keep hearing on the news that 

10 even internationally the G7 is looking at 
11 corporate taxes.  We also keep hearing about 
12 people from up north moving down to Florida, 
13 down here, to take advantage of our no state 
14 income tax, to take advantage of the fact 
15 that businesses can do a lot of business in 
16 our state without paying corporate income 
17 taxes.
18          What are you hearing as far as the 
19 possibility of taking advantage of those who 
20 want to take advantage of our state, of our 
21 region, and having them pay their fair 
22 share?  
23          A lot of which could go to 
24 affordable housing, a lot of which could go 
25 to mass transit, a lot of which could go to 
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1 infrastructure.  
2          These are all the things that are 
3 desperately needed in the area, and as our 
4 population and our corporate population 
5 grows, the need becomes even greater.
6      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  It's a good question.  
7 I think it's one we need to answer.  I'm not 
8 sure we have an answer to that question, but 
9 I do like it posed.

10          So, I do think it's something we 
11 all need to really kind of germinate on, and 
12 then work with our state legislators to see 
13 if there's an opportunity to address that 
14 issue.
15          Some of that is addressed through 
16 our sales tax and how we actually generate 
17 revenue for various different efforts.  And 
18 in this case, you know, we have the CIT tax, 
19 and we have the communications tax.  We have 
20 the gas tax.  We also hopefully will have 
21 another surtax for transit coming next year 
22 back to the voters.
23          But to answer your question about 
24 the corporate tax, I don't know the answer 
25 to that question.  But I think it's worth 
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1 ruminating on.
2      MR. WASSERMAN:  Particularly with the 
3 amount of business that is done -- I'll just 
4 call it out -- the Amazon-type business 
5 where -- I see those trucks up and down the 
6 streets four, five, six times a day.  
7          They're renting Enterprise vans at 
8 this point, because they don't have enough 
9 trucks.  And those sales are tax-free.

10      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Not anymore.  I think 
11 we just passed the legislation to add tax to 
12 online.
13      MR. WASSERMAN:  Okay.  Good.
14      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  So I believe that is 
15 one of the new taxes in Florida that will 
16 generate a significant portion of revenue to 
17 the state. Whether or not we're going to see 
18 it stay in our local area is the question.  
19          So I think to your point, yes, 
20 there are things that we have that will help 
21 generate more revenue for things.  We just 
22 have to continue to advocate for our share 
23 for affordable housing, I believe.
24      MR. WASSERMAN:  Okay.
25      MS. HOWELL:  I want to add to that, in 

Page 62

1 terms of affordable housing.  So as it 
2 relates to affordable housing tax credits.
3          It creates an opportunity for our 
4 corporations to come in when they syndicate 
5 those tax credits and then they're able to 
6 utilize that.
7          So there may be an opportunity in 
8 this whole deal to actually get a higher 
9 value for the tax credits.  Because as you 

10 know, they will fluctuate, and in a really, 
11 really good market you may get a dollar and 
12 10 cents, a dollar and 15 cents for your tax 
13 credit.  
14          And in a really sluggish market, 
15 you might get 75 or 80 cents for your tax 
16 credit.
17          So I think there's some opportunity 
18 there for the corporations when they come in 
19 and they get those tax credits syndicated.  
20 So we'll see.  
21          So, you know, that's no written out 
22 here yet, so we're kind of waiting for a lot 
23 of the pieces to still fall.  So thank you 
24 so much.
25      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank 
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1 you.
2          With that, seeing no other 
3 questions, I'm going to move to the next 
4 item on the agenda, the Director's report.
5      MS. HOWELL:  Okay.  Thank you so much, 
6 Commissioner.  Sheryl Howell, Affordable 
7 Housing.
8          We've got a number of wonderful 
9 things that's happening.  One of the things 

10 that's not on my report, but I do want to 
11 bring up, is an agreement that we have with 
12 UACBC and Blue Sky and our very own Sarah 
13 Combs.  They're going to be breaking ground 
14 pretty soon on a development.  I want to say 
15 it's a 62-unit or 64-unit development in the 
16 University area.  
17          This was part of our (inaudible) 
18 last year.  It's a four percent deal.  I'm 
19 extremely excited about these new units 
20 being brought in this area in particular.  
21 It's been a while since we've seen, you 
22 know, any new units down in the University 
23 area.  And rental units, anyway.  So I'm 
24 really excited about that.
25          Sara, do you have any comments for 
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1 us?
2      MS. COMBS:  Yes.  We are just thrilled 
3 about it.  It will be 61 units.  And it's on 
4 12th and Fletcher.  This opportunity for 
5 residents in the University area has been a 
6 long time coming, as Sheryl said, and we've 
7 waited decades to see development of this 
8 scale.
9          And most importantly, what I'm most 

10 proud about Uptown Sky is the quality of the 
11 housing product.  It looks like, you know, a 
12 market rate apartment.  
13          And that is really the standard 
14 that we're trying to set here in the 
15 University area community.  It's about 
16 quality and the residents that deserve that, 
17 and being able to accomplish that, I feel 
18 like, will set the standard for what we're 
19 trying to do in the community.
20          I just want to thank this board and 
21 also everyone that has played a part in it.  
22 The Blue Sky communities have been wonderful 
23 to work with.  And, again, just really 
24 appreciate the opportunity to build this for 
25 our community.
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1          Again, 61 families will be able to 
2 call this place "home."  And we hope there 
3 will be more and more in the future for 
4 UACC.
5      MS. HOWELL:  Okay, great.  Thank you so 
6 much, Sarah.
7          We have a number of 
8 recently-approved BOCC agenda items.  We 
9 included those items in your packet.  We 

10 have been very, very busy.  There are a lot 
11 of changes that are going on up in D.C.  
12          As you know, we have a new HUD 
13 Secretary.  We have a new regional interim 
14 person that's been put in place, and as of 
15 last Friday we have a new Assistant of 
16 Secretary as well.
17          And so if you've been around long 
18 enough, you know that a lot of emphasis 
19 comes out of a new administration.  They're 
20 not necessarily new rules.  Sometimes 
21 they're rolling back rules.  Sometimes they 
22 change our rules a little bit.  
23          And so we're going to see what this 
24 particular administration has for us.  
25 There's going to be a tremendous amount of 
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1 effort on home ownership opportunities, on 
2 prevention of homelessness, and access to 
3 housing for very low-income families.
4          We are already seeing that in the 
5 structure of the funding that's coming 
6 forward.
7          Also in the Affordable Housing 
8 Services Report, I want to bring to your 
9 attention that we have a celebration with 

10 Blue Sky and Matt Mann on a one hundred   
11 and -- I want to say it was the 144-unit or 
12 the 112-unit project out in the Sable Place.
13          So for those of you who were able 
14 to join the event, it was a wonderful, 
15 wonderful event.  
16          And so 70 percent of those families 
17 that will be placed in that apartment 
18 complex are emerging out of homelessness.  
19          I mean, what a huge win for our 
20 community.  I certainly appreciate 
21 everything that Matt Mann and -- I'm sorry.  
22 All my phones are going off -- Matt Mann and 
23 Blue Sky was able to bring to that deal.
24          We currently don't have any other 
25 specific reports from Affordable Housing 
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1 Services.  We are waiting for some 
2 additional guidelines for our federal 
3 dollars, and any additional set-asides or 
4 emphasis from our state dollars as well.
5          We are looking forward to bringing 
6 you a wonderful, wonderful project that we 
7 will be breaking ground on.  And so that 
8 will be next month's news.  
9          So thank you so much, Commissioner.

10      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you.  Thank you 
11 very much, Ms. Howell.  I appreciate the 
12 updates.
13          There is -- also we are at Future 
14 Business issues or items.  Are there any 
15 recommendations for future items?
16      MS. HOWELL:  Commissioner, can I go back 
17 for just a second?  We do have one issue 
18 that's resolved, and I didn't know if it 
19 fell under the Director's report or the 
20 Chair's report.
21          We need to bring some resolution to 
22 alternate board members and their ability to 
23 vote in the absence of the appointed board 
24 member.
25      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Right.  Actually, I 

Page 68

1 was going to bring that up under New 
2 Business.  But we can talk about it now, 
3 since we're at New business.
4          We have several positions on the 
5 Affordable Housing Advisory Board that are 
6 appointed by other boards, such as 
7 Commissioner Myers.  She was actually an 
8 alternate for Mr. Hudson, but then now she's 
9 the primary.  And HART has established an 

10 alternate.
11          But our bylaws currently don't 
12 address that particular circumstance.  So if 
13 we have -- For example, the City of Tampa 
14 has a position.  We have a variety of 
15 different positions.  Mayor Lott, you have 
16 your county -- your Vice Mayor.  Vice Mayor, 
17 right?  That as you're the elected, it's 
18 appointed from Plant City, you may want to 
19 opt for having that Vice Mayor to act and 
20 vote in your place.
21          Our current bylaws do not actually 
22 address that.  And I know Ms. Takamori has 
23 actually been thinking about this, because 
24 it came up when we were discussing the prior 
25 appointed member actually needing to resign.
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1          So can you give us an update on 
2 where or what your recommendations will be 
3 for the board to consider as we ask the BOCC 
4 to approve any bylaws changes that we 
5 recommend?
6      MS. TAKAMORI:  Thank you.  Absolutely.  
7 Yeah.  
8          My recommendation would be that 
9 this board consider approving a motion to 

10 request the Board of County Commissioners to 
11 adopt a resolution allowing agencies that 
12 select members for AHAB to appoint 
13 alternates with voting rights in absence of 
14 the primary member.
15          And were this board to pass that 
16 motion, Staff could prepare a resolution and 
17 bring it to the Board of County 
18 Commissioners for their consideration.
19      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 
20 very much.
21          So, would the process be that we -- 
22 you provide us with a sample document to put 
23 something like that in place?  Or do we just 
24 move that you bring the document back to us, 
25 or can we entertain a motion to have you 
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1 bring the document back for consideration by 
2 the board to present to the BOCC?  Or how 
3 would you recommend we do that?
4      MS. TAKAMORI:  I can certainly prepare 
5 the resolution and bring it back to you at 
6 your next AHAB meeting.  
7          I think it's fairly 
8 straightforward, if you do make the motion 
9 at the Board of County Commissioner -- that 

10 you recommend the Board of County 
11 Commissioners adopt a resolution that allows 
12 the agencies to appoint alternates and that 
13 they have voting rights.  It would say 
14 something substantially like that.  
15          So if you want to consider it, 
16 absolutely, ask me to bring it back at the 
17 next AHAB meeting.
18          Alternatively, your motion could 
19 simply be that Staff prepare it and bring it 
20 right to the Board of County Commissioners.
21      MALE VOICE:  Madame Chair, I would like 
22 to make a recommendation for Staff to 
23 prepare and take it straight to the County 
24 Commission.  Okay.  
25          Because I think this is something 
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1 that is pretty standard with most of the 
2 boards we have, and it sure would keep 
3 consistency the level of participation when 
4 we have each one of us have an alternate 
5 that would be able to take our place when we 
6 can't be there.
7          So I'd like to make that motion.
8      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Do I have a second?
9      COMMISSIONER MYERS:  Second.

10      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  A second by 
11 Commissioner Myers, and Director Powell.  
12 Could you take a role call vote, unless 
13 there's other discussion?  Okay.  
14      Role call, please.
15      CLERK:  Overman.
16      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Yes.
17      CLERK:  Myers.
18      COMMISSIONER MYERS:  Yes.
19      CLERK:  Rosenwasser. 
20      MR. ROSENWASSER:  Yes.  
21      CLERK:  Burton.  Lott.
22      MAYOR LOTT:  Yes.
23      CLERK:  Able?
24      MS. ABLE:  Yes.
25      CLERK:  Powell.
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1      MR. POWELL:  Yes.
2      CLERK:  Jackson-Simms.
3      MS. JACKSON-SIMMS:  Yes.
4      CLERK:  Combs.  Sarah Combs.
5      MS. COMBS:  Yes.
6      CLERK:  David Hollis.  Mr. Hollis?  
7 Okay.  Motion carried 9-0.
8      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 
9 very much.  

10          And I appreciate it, everyone, 
11 because I know this is an important part of 
12 our participation.
13          I also want to say "thank you" for 
14 having an in-person quorum today.  And we're 
15 getting closer.  We're getting closer.  
16          And I appreciate those that, you 
17 know, follow the process and protocols for 
18 keeping our community safe.
19          Are there any other new business 
20 items that we'd like to address?  
21          Mr. Powell, you're recognized.
22      MR. POWELL:  Thank you, Madame Chair.  I 
23 just wanted to see if maybe for next month's 
24 meeting if we could possibly have the folks 
25 from Tendle Oliver come and give us the same 
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1 presentation that they did for the Planning 
2 Commission on the Affordable Housing Density 
3 Bonus Study that they're doing.  
4          I thought that it was one of the 
5 most comprehensive presentations, similar to 
6 what we had today, and was really short and 
7 concise.  And I think it would be really a 
8 big benefit to everyone on the board just to 
9 hear their thoughts and see some of their 

10 recommendations.
11      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.
12      MR. POWELL:  So I'd just like to put 
13 that out there.
14      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  I like that 
15 recommendation.  We'll reach out to them and 
16 see if they're available for the next 
17 meeting, and we'll add it to the agenda.
18      MS. HOWELL:  We're coordinating that 
19 right now, Commissioner, with the NPO.
20      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank 
21 you.  
22          Any other new business items?  
23 Again, thank you.  
24          Everybody have a wonderful 4th of 
25 July.  I guess we're getting -- have a safe 
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1 one.
2      CLERK:  Commissioner, I just wanted to 
3 add to the record that we did have Chris 
4 Nueves join the meeting.  I just wanted that 
5 to be added to the record.  
6          And Councilman Gudes has an excused 
7 absence.  He had a Council meeting this 
8 morning.
9      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you 

10 very much for that.  I appreciate it.
11      MS. HOWELL:  Sarah Combs is raising her 
12 hand.
13      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Ms. Combs, you're 
14 recognized.
15      MS. COMBS:  Can we get a quick update on 
16 where we are with the land trust?  And then 
17 also the land RFP that is set to hopefully 
18 go out soon?  
19      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Ms. Howell.
20      MS. HOWELL:  Absolutely.  So, on the 
21 land trust, we're currently -- I want to say 
22 we have had two -- we have had three 
23 meetings with the FHC on the land trust so 
24 far, and we are putting together the 
25 structure for it.
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1          They are set -- or scheduled to 
2 come back to the AHAB board in August -- 
3      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Okay.
4      MS. HOWELL:  -- with their plan.  So 
5 it's moving pretty quickly.
6          On the land RFP, we wanted to get a 
7 property rezoned before we moved forward.  
8 And so we're in that process.  We've got a 
9 couple of properties, actually, we want to 

10 get rezoned before we move forward.
11          It may be a lot easier after 
12 speaking with Development Services to do 
13 that before we release those properties.
14      MS. COMBS:  Great.  Would the Land Trust 
15 Committee be reconvened after August when we 
16 get that report?
17      MS. HOWELL:  Well, I'm not sure about 
18 the process of the Land Trust Committee 
19 being convened again.  And so I think that 
20 will be up for discussion for the board.  
21          I think really we've just got to 
22 look at what they bring back to us in terms 
23 of the structure, you know.  And we can make 
24 our recommendation to be able to bring it to 
25 the Board of County Commissioners for 
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1 approval.
2      MS. COMBS:  Okay.  Thank you so much.
3      MS. HOWELL:  So we can make changes and 
4 modifications during that time.  So it's a 
5 very fluid process, is what I want to say to 
6 you.
7      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you very much.  
8 Ms. Burton, you're recognized.
9      MS. BURTON:  (inaudible).

10      MS. HOWELL:  We're not able to hear you, 
11 Ms. Burton.
12      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Can you help her?
13      MS. BURTON:  So, what I was saying, you 
14 know, as a person that have, you know, lived 
15 in whether it was subsidized housing, 
16 experiencing homelessness myself, I could 
17 just only reiterate that the pressure is 
18 really on.  
19          The pressure is on for -- you know, 
20 you're wonderful people who, you know, are 
21 policymakers, you know, Board of Directors, 
22 Commissioners.  To just dig in.  People 
23 ain't looking for no Correl model.  We don't 
24 need 3,500 square foot.  We don't need that.
25          We just need leadership to move us 
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1 in a direction so we can have dignity and 
2 living.  That's all we want.  
3          And for people to -- kind of like 
4 this document is beautiful, but I guess 
5 witnessing it in certain many different 
6 levels where people say, "Well, the market 
7 is dictating such a high rate and these 
8 costs."  
9          I believe we're working with a 

10 group of people that is dedicated to the 
11 cause.  And so when I sit here, I ain't 
12 sitting here because I own anything.  I 
13 don't own nothing.  But I'm here to advocate 
14 constantly that our community is so 
15 dependent upon you all to move forward with, 
16 you know, rapid speed so we can just restore 
17 a good standard and stabilize our 
18 communities in ways in which we can feel the 
19 full effects, from adults all the way to the 
20 children.
21          Because we just got so much of 
22 chaos going on right now in certain 
23 communities.  And it's the belief that if we 
24 could stabilize our families, if we could 
25 stabilize our housing, we could solve a 

Page 78

1 whole bunch of stuff.  Thank you.
2      CHAIRMAN OVERMAN:  Thank you very much 
3 for your comments.  And it reminds us why 
4 we're all here, and that you can keep 
5 reminding us, Ms. Burton, every day.  
6          Because I'm perfectly happy with 
7 hearing that reminder, because that is 
8 exactly why we're here.
9          With that, I don't see any hands 

10 raised.  Like I said, I wish you a safe and 
11 happy 4th of July, and we will see you next 
12 month.  Thank you very much.  Meeting 
13 adjourned.  
14      (Meeting adjourned at this point.) 
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1             CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION
2
3 STATE OF FLORIDA   
4
5 COUNTY OF PINELLAS 
6
7     I, Jerry P. Lefler, Court Reporter, certify that I was 

authorized to and did transcribe the above Video 
8 Conference Hearing and that the transcript is a true and 

correct record of my said recording, to the best of my 
9 ability.
10     I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative, employee, 

or attorney, or counsel of the parties, nor am I a 
11 relative or employee of any of the parties' attorneys or 

counsel connected with the action, nor am I financially 
12 interested in the action.
13     DATED this 21st day of June, 2021.
14
15
16
17
18

                    ______________________________
19

                    Jerry P. Lefler CSR RPR CRR CM
20
21
22
23
24
25
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING DENSITY BONUS PROJECT

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 
Catherine Hartley, AICP, CNU-a – Community Planning Director 
July 12, 2021 



TINDALE OLIVER TEAM

Steve Tindale AICP, PE – Principal in Charge 
Catherine Hartley, AICP, CNU-a – Project Manager
Nilgun Kamp, AICP – Economics and Policy  
Ali Ankudowich, AICP – Policy Research and Analysis 
Patrick Dougherty, AICP – Data and Analysis 



SCOPE OF WORK 

• Review existing language 
• Best practices white paper
• Peer community and affordable housing developer interviews 
• Market trends 
• Scenario testing 
• Draft recommendations 
• One page handout for developers 
• Final report 



ITEMS COMPLETED TO DATE 

• Kickoff meeting 4/26/21 
• Reviewed existing comprehensive plan and LDC language 
• Mapped existing criteria 
• Located peer communities with density bonus program 
• Interviewed peer communities  
• Interviewed affordable housing developers
• Best practice case study underway 
• Market research begun 



HOW IS AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPED TODAY? 
• Mostly low income tax credits (leveraging other programs) 
• 1986 tax code 
• Allocated annually by Congress 
• Hillsborough County competes with other large counties and their municipalities 
• More projects not approved for funding than are 
• Florida Housing Finance Corporation issues Requests for Applications annually 
• Process – developer comes to local government for multiple signatures prior to 

submittal – does the proposal meet zoning and land use without any conditions? 
Does it have access to infrastructure? Points for proximity to grocery stores, 
transit, pharmacy, doctor’s office, library, etc.   



FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION RENTAL PROJECTS 



EXISTING CRITERIA FOR DENSITY BONUS 

• Rezoning and conditional use required 
• Language is difficult to interpret 
• Long process (One year +/- from concept to pre-app to final 

hearing) 
• Expensive (Application fee plus soft costs) 
• Outcome is uncertain for applicant 



VACANT LAND ELIGIBLE FOR BONUS BASED ON 
CURRENT POLICIES* 
• In Urban Service Area
• Water and sewer available 
• Within a mile of transit line
• Within 3 miles of economic development 

projects/areas with 200 jobs 
• In a residential or commercial/mixed-use 

Future Land Use category with at least 4 
units per acre 

*See Housing Policy 3.6.1

Note: We also removed parcels in CHHA, Environmentally Sensitive Lands, and Florida 

Managed Lands

Result: 421 Parcels; 351 total acres; 403 parcels less than 5 acres 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT INTERVIEWS 

• Density bonus policy is still evolving 
• Fort Lauderdale and Broward County (LPA) are in amendment process 
• Measuring success is inconsistent
• Miami Dade County’s process is the most comprehensive 
• Target Area Median Income (AMI) varies among jurisdictions 
• General agreement: Multiple strategies work together 
• Most agree that areas with very high density don’t need bonus 
• Every project is different, and each has its challenges 



NEXT STEPS 

• Summarize developer interviews 
• Finish market research and white paper– July 
• Develop new criteria (draft) – July/August
• Scenario test surplus parcels with draft criteria – July/August 
• Refine criteria - August 
• Final recommendations and report – September/October 
• Briefings/outreach throughout process 



CONCEPTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

• Affordable versus workforce housing (30/60/80/120/140% AMI) 
• Administrative/By right or public hearing
• Density bonus greater than next higher FLUM category 
• Willingness to reduce parking (and other site) requirements administratively 
• Should affordable housing be located proximate to transit and services (grocery 

store, pharmacy, medical services/schools) or should it be encouraged countywide? 
(Fl Statute permits local governments to approve affordable housing in any 
residential, commercial, or industrial zoning district; financing gives preference to 
proximity to transit and services)



DISCUSSION   

If you have questions or comments outside of this workshop, please direct them to Mariann Abrahamsen or 
Jennifer Malone marianna@plancom.org or malonej@plancom.org

mailto:marianna@plancom.org
mailto:malonej@plancom.org


Director’s Report 



CONTAINER HOMES
SHIPPING



A shipping container home is a dwelling made from steel shipping 
containers

-Shipping containers are available in two sizes: 20 feet by 8 feet or 40 
feet x 8 feet

- 20-foot containers are 160 square feet of living space
- 40-foot shipping containers offer 320 square feet of living space. 

CONTAINER HOMES



BENEFITS

Time: 
- Many shipping container homes are available as prefabricated modular 
homes, making construction time shorter. Some companies advertise de-
livery within 10 weeks! 

Environmental:

- The environmental appeal of a container home is the idea that you are 
re-using a leftover product of the shipping industry to make a home. 

Cost: 
So what will a shipping container home cost?
- Smaller, more basic container homes can range between $10,000 to 
$35,000. 
- Large homes built with multiple shipping containers and amenities can 
range in price from $100,000 to $175,000. 
- In some cases, can cost half as much per square foot than traditional 
stick building. 

CONTAINER HOMES



HOW MUCH DO CONTAINER HOMES COST?

CONTAINERS: $1K - $5K EACH.

TYPES: 
- REGULAR CONTAINERS: MOST COMMON TYPE OF 
 CONTAINERS USED. CHEAPER AND ARE 20FT OR 40 FT

- HIGH CUBE CONTAINERS: HAVE HIGHER CEILINGS. 
  THEY PROVIDE A LARGER LIVING SPACE

40 FT CONTAINERS: $2,000 - $5,000 EA.
20 FT CONTAINERS: $1,000 - $3,500 EA.

*IN SOME CASES, ONE CONTAINER IS SUFFICIENT. MOST 
HOMES USE 2-5 CONTAINERS.

FOUNDATIONS AND SITE PREPARATION:

FOUNDATIONS ARE A VERY IMPORTANT 
THING TO CONSIDER.

(2)OPTIONS:
- SLAB ON GRADE: (MOST EXPENSIVE) $7K - $12K
  CONCRETE SLAB, REQUIRES EXCACATION.

- CONCRETE PIER: (MOST POPULAR) $4K - $8K
  QUICK TO CONSTRUCT. NO EXCAVATION NEEDED. 
  ON CONCRETE PIERS OR MASONRY PIERS.

  



PLUMBING: $3K - $7K

INCLUDES WATER DISTRIBUTION, WASTE, ETC.
FIXTURES: SHOWERS, SINKS, TOILETS. ETC.
EQUIPMENT: VALVES, WATER HEATERS, ETC.
PIPES AND FITTINGS

HVAC: $2K - $5K
- EQUIPMENT NEEDED TO CONTROL INTERIOR 
  ENVIRONMENT
- INCLUDES PORTABLE HEATER AND 
  DUCTLESS SYSTEMS

ELECTRICAL: $4K - $8K

INCLUDES EVERYTHING RELATED TO 
TRANSMITTING ELECTRICAL POWER
FOR DEVICES AND EQUIPMENT.

STRUCTURAL/WELDING: $5K - $12K

INCLUDES WELDING AND ALL STRUCTURAL
MODIFICATIONS NEEDED TO MAINTAIN
INTEGRITY OF THE SHIPPING CONTAINER.

HOW MUCH DO CONTAINER HOMES COST?

OPENINGS: $6K - $12K

INCLUDES DOORS, WINDOWS, AND DETAILS 
NECCESSARY FOR CONTROLLING LEAKS.

INTERIOR WALLS & FINISHES: $17K- $30K

INCLUDES INTERIOR PARTITIONS, INSULATION, 
CEILINGS, SUBFLOORING, FLOOR FINISHES, ETC.



ENGLEWOOD, FLORIDA

- REASON FOR BUILDING: MINIMAL LIFESTYLE & FINANCIAL FREEDOM
- SIZE:  960 SQ. FT. 
- 3 SHIPPING CONTAINERS (40’-0 LENGTH X 8’-0” WIDTH X 9’-6” HEIGHT)
- FOUNDATION TYPE: CONCRETE PIERS

           TOTAL COSTS: $35K-45K



A shipping container home is a dwelling made from steel shipping 
containers

-Shipping containers are available in two sizes: 20 feet by 8 feet or 40 
feet x 8 feet

- 20-foot containers are 160 square feet of living space
- 40-foot shipping containers offer 320 square feet of living space. 

PINELLAS PARK, FLORIDA

REASON FOR BUILDING: MIXED-USE ARTIST STUDIO AND APARTMENT

- (7) SHIPPING CONTAINERS (40’-0 LENGTH X 8’-0” WIDTH X 9’-6” HEIGHT)
- TOP FLOOR: APARTMENT| 3 CONTAINERS | 2 BEDROOMS & 1 BATHROOM
- BOTTOM FLOOR: ART GALLERY | ART  STUDIO |3 CONTAINERS

TOTAL COSTS: $250K

PINELLAS PARK, FLORIDA



DALLAS, TEXAS

“THE SINGLE-STORY DESIGN, WITH WIDE DOORWAYS, IS AN WONDERFUL 
EXAMPLE OF AN ADA ACCESSIBLE TINY HOME.“

REASON FOR BUILDING: ACCESSORY DWELLING
(1) CONTAINER (40’-0 LENGTH X 8’-0” WIDTH X 9’-6” HEIGHT)
SIZE: 320 SQ. FT.

TOTAL COSTS: $50K



FOUNDATIONS AND SITE PREPARATION:

FOUNDATIONS ARE A VERY IMPORTANT 
THING TO CONSIDER.

(2)OPTIONS:
- SLAB ON GRADE: (MOST EXPENSIVE) $7K - $12K
  CONCRETE SLAB, REQUIRES EXCACATION.

- CONCRETE PIER: (MOST POPULAR) $4K - $8K
  QUICK TO CONSTRUCT. NO EXCAVATION NEEDED. 
  ON CONCRETE PIERS OR MASONRY PIERS.

  

COSTS:
CONTAINER = $5000
STEEL CUTTING/WELDING = $6000
INSULATION & CLADDING = $4000
PLUMBING & ELECTRICAL = $4500
FIXTURES & FLOORING  =  $7500

ADELAIDE, AUSTRALIA

REASON FOR BUILDING: SHORT TERM RENTAL/ INVESTMENT

(1) CONTAINER (40’-0 LENGTH X 8’-0” WIDTH X 9’-6” HEIGHT)

SIZE: 320 SQ. FT.

VIEW OF THE EMPTY SHIPPING CON-
TAINER THAT WAS USED TO BUILD 
THE RENTAL UNIT.

GALLEY STYLE KITCHEN. WITH SINK, 
DISHWASHER, COOKTOP, AND 
FRIDGE.

VIEW OF THE BATHROOM

TOTAL COSTS: $35K-40K

“This affordable shipping container home design highlights how 320 
square feet doesn’t have to mean dark, cramped, or boring.” 



SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
PERMANENT



PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

What?
- An idea that combines a�ordable housing assis-
tance with voluntary support services to address the                                
needs of displaced & chronically homeless people. 

The services: 
 - Build independent living and tenancy skills 
- Connect people with community-based care, treat-
ment and employment services.

How can it help?
- Investments in permanent supportive housing 
have helped decrease the number of chronically 
homeless individuals by 8 percent since 2007. (The 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development).

-A cost-e�ective solution, permanent supportive 
housing has been shown to lower public costs asso-
ciated with the use of crisis services such as shelters, 
hospitals, jails and prisons.



WHY WE NEED PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

People experiencing chronic homelessness 2020:             266 
Homeless families:                                                                               379
Homeless Student Count 2018-2019:                                    4,240

- Singe parent Households 2019(%):                                            36
 
- Median Household income: $59K
 
Unemployment Rate (%)                                                          4.7
Unemployment population                                         36,722
 

Demographics in Hillsborough County
 



COTTAGES AT HICKORY CROSSING

NAME: COTTAGES AT HICKORY CROSSING
LOCATION: DOWNTOWN DALLAS, TEXAS

PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING AND 
SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE 50 MOST CHRONIC CASES OF 
HOMELESSNESS IN DALLAS. 

RE-IMAGINES TRADITIONAL MODELS BY ABANDONING SECTIONED
FORMS FOR  SEPARATE BUT LINKED STRUCTURES.

PROJECT SIZE:  
3 ACRES
FIFTY, 430-SQUARE FOOT COTTAGES
4,000 SF SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING



REASON FOR BUILDING: SHORT TERM RENTAL/ INVESTMENT

(1) CONTAINER (40’-0 LENGTH X 8’-0” WIDTH X 9’-6” HEIGHT)

SIZE: 320 SQ. FT.

COTTAGES AT HICKORY CROSSING

- ”The cottages aren't temporary shelters, but 
what advocates call permanent supportive hous-
ing.” 

- These homes that are linked with services and 
that can be occupied for as long as the residents 
meet minimum requirements. 

- Min. Requirements include, paying rent: 30 per-
cent of whatever income they might have either 
through work or social insurance programs, with a 
minimum of $50 per month.

- For the money, they get possession of a 
modern, one-bedroom bungalow of roughly 430 
square feet. 



CONTAINER HOMES
HILLSBOROUGH





CONTAINER HOMES: TAMPA, FL

- Rental subsidy program for seniors and single       
parent families

Population Served:
1) Single Parent Families
2) Displaced Senior Citizens

Goals:
1) Create self-sustaining tenants through collabora-
tion with existing organizations

2) Help tenants transition to home ownership after 
completing the program

3) Educate at risk youth and returning citizens in 
skilled trades  by partnering with existing programs.



CONTAINER HOMES: TAMPA, FL

Needs:

Short Term:  
1) Min. 2500 Sq. ft. Single residential lot for model 
home and pilot program.

2) Acquisition & Construction funding

Long term:

1) 1/4 to 1 Acre lot for a micro community of    
container homes.

2) Acquisition & Construction funding



YOU!
THANK



10 POINT AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESPONSE PLAN

1. Landlord Eviction Alternative 
Program

2. Displacement
1. Rental Mortgage Assistance 

Beyond Cares

2. Lease Acquisition of Motel

3. Rapid Rehousing

4. Shared Housing for Singles 
50+ years 

5. Targeted Neighborhood SF 
Rehab-East Tampa, Plant City, 
Palm River, Town n’ Country

6. Eviction Forgiveness 

7. Non Profit Guarantee Rent

8. Landlord Rehab Program

9. Private Unit Rental Subsidy 
Program - Allows long-term 
subsidy for tenants in existing MF 
units

10. Elderly and Medically Vulnerable 
Temporary Placement

1

CARES 
Funding

Landlord Eviction and 
Displacement

Sustained Recovery



COMMUNITY IMPACTS

2

Investing In the Future

Targeted Rehab-6 HH 
qualified, 6 pending

Homeownership-49 DPA

25 Under Construction

MF Preservation and New Construction- 916 Apartments Units 

Innovative Housing-2 Units 
Shared Housing

Leveraging of Local Funding-More than $170MM

Eviction Prevention-1,649HH/Rapid Rehousing-97 HH



BUDGET IMPACTS
Multifamily Rental

Single Family

Down Payment 

Targeted Rehab

Eviction Prevention

Rapid Rehousing

Shared Housing

3

48.0%

4.0%

1.0%
7.0%

20.0%

18.0%, 18%

2.0%

Multifamily Rental

SF New Construction

Down Payment Assistance

Targeted Housing Rehab

Eviciton Prevention

Rapid Rehousing

Shared Housing



FORECASTING & PROJECTIONS
Multifamily Rental -
Slight Decrease 
Acquisition/Rehab/ 
Conversion

Single Family -
Increase in Developer 
Subsidy/DPA

Down Payment - Increase 

Targeted Rehab -
Increase 

Eviction Prevention -
Increase/Stabilize

Rapid Rehousing -
Increase/Stabilize

Shared Housing -
Permanent Increase

4

35.0%

10.0%

5.0%10.0%

10.0%

10.0%, 10%

15.0%

5.0%

Multifamily Rental

SF New Construction

Down Payment Assistance

Targeted Housing Rehab

Eviciton Prevention

Rapid Rehousing

Shared Housing



 

Hillsborough County 
Affordable Housing Advisory Board (AHAB) 

2022 Meeting Dates 
 

The following are the proposed meeting dates for 2022. All meetings begin 
at 9:00 am.  

 
Monday, January 10, 2022 
Monday, February 14, 2022 

Monday, March 14, 2022 
Monday, April 11, 2022 
Monday, May 9, 2022 

Monday, June 13, 2022 
July 2022 Meeting Free Period 

Monday, August 8, 2022 
Monday, September 12, 2022 

Monday, October 10, 2022 
Monday, November 14, 2022 

December 2022 Meeting Free Period 
 
 
 

*Dates are subject to approval by AHAB and to venue availability. 



























Monitoring and Compliance 

All Projects are monitored annually throughout the affordability period established at the time of funding.  
The chart below reflects projects funded from 1996-2021 still within the affordability period.   Affordability 
periods range from 5 -40 years depending on the program funding and requirements.  

Projects 
Monitored 
Annually 

# 
Properties 

Funding Invested 
(Local, State and 

Federal) 
1996-2019 

Total Units Set Aside Units 
Required 

Multi-Family 65 $83,027,364 6362 2912 

Public Facilities 50 $21,959,000 
 

50 50 

Public Service 8 $1,009,784 Agencies Service Agencies 

Local Funds 1/10 $300,000 Agencies Capacity Building 

CRF 3  $4,000,000 1600 clients Rental/Mortgage 
Assistance 

Down Payment 
Assistance 

1 $500,000 35 clients Home buyer 
assistance 

THHI – HESG 6 $594,441 Agencies Homeless Services 

THHI – HESG CV I 5 $2,129,659 Agencies Rapid Rehousing 
Shelter Operations 

THHI – HESG CV2 5 $6,054,897 Agencies Rapid Rehousing 
Shelter Operations 

CDBG -CV 1  3 $3,000,000 
 

Agencies Rental/Mortgage 
Assistance 

State Cares Act 1 $1,450,000 13 units Motel Acquisition 

Single Family 
Rehab 

2 $2,751,000 45 Owner Rehab 

Single Family 
New Const 

2 $2,600,000 21 New Homes for sale 

 

For the period of June to date, the compliance team is completing desk audits for multi-family properties, 
single family rehab  agencies, as well as Public Facilities and Public Services.  File review site visits  and unit 
inspections will resume on an as needed basis to maintain compliance, or secure file share system will be 
utilized.   

Public Service Agencies and THHI  are working through the funding agreements for FY2021.  Rental and 
Mortgage assistance is available through December with two outside agencies.  Nicole Gelber has been 
hired as our new Compliance Manager .  



Contracts Division 

All Affordable Housing, Public Facility, Infrastructure and Public Improvement Construction Projects are 

managed through the Contracts Division. The chart below reflects all of the current open projects by 

type funded with CDBG, HOME, SHIP, Local funds and Coronavirus Relief Funds.   

Projects 

Monitored 

Annually 

# Projects 

(31) 

Funding Invested 

(Local, State and 

Federal) 

 

Total 

Beneficiaries or 

Households 

Types of Activity 

CDBG Public 

Facilities  

14 $8,418,098.00 

 

 

 

Facilities 

 

CDBG MF  

Rehabilitation 

2 $3,933,862.00 

 

 

 

Multi-Family  

Rental 

CDBG Temple 

Terrace and Plant 

City 

4 $1,136,106.00  Urban County 

Partner - 

Infrastructure 

HOME – SF Land 

Acquisition 

and/or New 

Construction 

2 $1,045,872.44  Single Family 

Construction 

SHIP – Down 

Payment Asst 

1 $500,000.00  

 

Single Family 

SHIP – Owner  

Rehabilitation  

1 $450,000.00 

 

 Single Family 

SHIP/Local 

Housing Funds 

(HOPE) Rehab & 

Demo 

2 $2,751,000.00  Single Family 

SHIP – MF New 

Construction/MF 

Rehab 

3 $2,343,696.00  

 

Multi-Family  

Rental 

Local – Shared 

Housing 

Acquisition/Rehab 

1 $652,687.00  

 

Acquisition and 

Rehab 

CRF – 

Acquisition/Rehab 

1 $1,469,687.18  Catholic Charities- 

Ruskin Motel 

  

Currently there are 31 active projects managed by the Contracts team including, but not limited to:  

fourteen (14) Public Facility Renovations: Children Education Center, Community Parks, Adult Special 

Needs Day Care Center, Homeless Family Solution Center, Education and Workforce Opportunity Center, 

as well as group homes and foster care facilities; two (2) Multi-Family Rehabilitation projects that will 

add 28 units to the affordable housing count in the County; three (3) New Constructions Multi-Family 

housing projects that will add an additional 144 units to the affordable housing count in the County; 

three (3) Urban County Partner infrastructure projects with Plant City (1) and Temple Terrace (2) and 

one (1) Down Payment Assistance Program project.  The acquisition and rehabilitation of a twelve (12) 



unit motel in Ruskin that will serve individuals experiencing homelessness due to COVID-19.  The 

Contract Team also oversee four (4) vendor agencies who administer Owner Occupied Single Family 

Housing Rehabilitation programs on behalf of Hillsborough County.  The 4 vendor agency contracts total 

$4,246,872.44 and has assisted approximately one hundred nineteen (119) residents within the County.   

Affordable Housing Services Contracts and Compliance teams assist with providing Technical Assistance 

and ongoing review to ensure the project are in compliance and being completed on time within the 

approved budget.   



Hillsborough County Affordable Housing Services
Affordable Housing Advisory Board

August 10, 2020
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Hillsborough County Affordable Housing Services
Affordable Housing Advisory Board

August 10, 2020
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Affordable Housing Services 
Newsle�er - May 2021 

Latest News 

Affordable Housing  

Previously Featured Projects 

Item Totals 

Construc�on Costs (AHS) $145,040.22 

 Contribu�on $214,959.78 

Total $360,000.00 

Units 2 

Date Projects Units Funding 

Apr 2021 Carol Motel 13 $1,485,643.18 

Mar 2021 DACCO 5 $933,862.00 

Feb 2021  New Life Village  $387,917.00 

Jan 2021 Walis and Marphil Loop 6 $88,000.00 

 THHI - Shared Housing 

Through the HOPE Act adopted in 2019, Affordable 

Housing Services has partnered with the lead 

con�nuum of care agency, Tampa Hillsborough 

Homeless Ini�a�ve (THHI), to support the shared 

housing living approach, which assists Hillsborough 

County in its mission of producing more affordable 

housing. 

THHI has collaborated with various developers to 

acquire and rehabilitate nine single-family homes, 

townhomes, condominiums, or villas located 

throughout Hillsborough County.  To date, two single-

family homes have been purchased and fully rehabbed.  

The Open House took place on June 11, 2021.  

The first fully rehabbed home is located on Bass Street 

in Tampa, FL.  The floor plan displays four bedrooms, 

two baths, with a sizeable accommoda�ng driveway 

and backyard.  Single women will occupy the home.  

 

The second fully rehabbed home is located on 44th 

Street in Tampa, FL.  The floor plan also consists of four 

bedrooms and two bathrooms and will be occupied by 

male veterans. 

5127 N 44th  St. 

4431 Bass Street 
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